## **Haverhill Town Council**

## Minutes of a Meeting of Haverhill Town Council's

### **FULL COUNCIL**

Held on Monday 18<sup>th</sup> July 2022 at 7.00pm at Haverhill Arts Centre, High Street, Haverhill



**Present:** Mayor Councillor B Davidson

Councillor A Brown Councillor J Burns Councillor Firman Councillor P Hanlon Councillor J Mason Councillor D Smith Councillor L Smith

Councillor A Stinchcombe

**Apologies:** Councillor A Luccarini

Councillor E McManus

Deputy Mayor Councillor M Marks

Councillor L Miller-Jones Councillor D Roach

**In Attendance:** Colin Poole (Town Clerk)

Ms Caroline Robinson, CEO, The Voluntary Network

No members of the public were present.

## Welcome:

Mayor B Davidson welcomed everyone and advised the meeting was being recorded.

## **MINUTES**

		ACTION
C22 /090	Apologies for Absence The above apologies were noted.	
C22 /091	<u>Declaration of Interests and requests for dispensation</u> None.	
C22 /092	The Voluntary Network  Ms Caroline Robinson spoke about the role of community transport in helping people who find it difficult to use public transport. Many are elderly and disabled, but it could be anyone who finds it challenging. That is a message she is keen to ensure is heard, as many people do not realise they can use the service.	
	The Voluntary Network is based in Newmarket, has been operating for 30 years and covers a large area, having merged with 3 Counties Transport in	

Haverhill. It has volunteer and paid drivers. It comes under the SCC branding of Connecting Communities. It includes dial-a-ride and community car service and DRT.

The RIDE services to West Suffolk Hospital takes anyone from any bus stop in Haverhill to the hospital directly. Bus pass holders travel for free. It is funded on an annual basis, but the service has been a lifeline to many people.

Following the issuing of advice during Covid not to use public transport, the work of rebuilding trust and confidence for passengers is a big job, so promoting the services is a major job – any help the council can give would be appreciated. Haverhill is a strong centre for voluntary groups bouncing back from the pandemic.

TVN also provides a befriending service with 250 volunteers, that worked with Haverhill Town Council during Covid to support people who were isolated through shielding. These often-become mutual friendships. There is a strong presence in Haverhill.

In answer to questions, Ms Robinson advised:

- The big ask at this time is publicity.
- The local number is a Haverhill one, but rings in their centre in Newmarket. The volunteers are local to Haverhill.
- The dial-a-ride is nearly back to the previous levels of use, with 6-8 passengers a day.
- The vehicles will need replacing, but that requires significant capital funds.
- The service operates 6 days a week 9-5, but drivers will work 8-8. Not normally on a Sunday or late night.

Councillor J Mason offered to put an advert on the council's digital display outside the Arts Centre.

The Clerk reminded Ms Robinson that the Town Council has a budget for grant-funding for community transport, which TVN has not recently applied for. He has emailed her an application form. Ms Robinson will submit an application.

## C22 The minutes of the Town Council meeting held 27<sup>th</sup> June 2022

/093 It was proposed by Councillor P Hanlon, seconded by Councillor L Smith that the minutes of the meeting held 27<sup>th</sup> June 2022 as amended be adopted as a true record.

#### **RESOLVED**

# C22 <u>To note progress of actions arising from the minutes not covered by</u> /094 <u>this Agenda</u>

C22/036b: Meeting with Highways. The Clerk advised that he has not be able to liaise yet to agree a date for a meeting but will endeavour to arrange this. C22/078 Code of Conduct. On 1<sup>st</sup> July the Clerk circulated to all councillors details of how to watch an online briefing.

C22/081(c)4: Asset register. The Clerk advised this was in hand but was an action for March 2023.

C22/083: Election of Chairs and Vice Chairs of Committees. The Clerk had put this on the agenda for Planning and also Leisure & Community and will put it on the agenda for Finance and Energy & Sustainability in due course.

Clerk

Clerk

# C22 Reports from District/County Councillors on issues pertinent to HAVERHILL and the PUBLIC FORUM

- a) Police see appendix 1
- b) County Councillors see appendix 2
- c) District Councillors see appendix 3
- d) Members of the public none

## C22 Mayor's Report:

/096 a) Mayor's report – see appendix 4

## C22 Project Update

/097 The Clerk referred the meeting to the list of projects he had previously circulated and the Mayor asked for feedback.

Councillor J Burns questioned some of the activities as he was not aware of some of the work of the Clerk and commented that he felt the Clerk was not delegating to other people. He advised the meeting that he was the only person in the last two years to have put anything on a notice board. He questioned the validity of the report and stated that it was hiding the work that should be being done.

Councillor J Mason wanted to see the bench project come to fruition and extend the project to add benches to areas around the town. He asked if the project could be phased – the Clerk advised it already was being phased.

The Clerk explained that he did not have the human resource available to do many of the practical projects as the council employed only one Community Warden – so who was supposed to be holding the other end of a bench when it is being carried into position? Other councils had a team of people to carry out such tasks. It is all very well for councillors to criticise the Clerk for not delegating work, but the council has to employ sufficient people for him to delegate to. The Clerk delegates tasks all the time, but there are not sufficient staff to do everything and we do not have the grounds staff as we do not have grounds such as cemeteries.

The council needs to prioritise items on the list but needs to be realistic about what is achievable.

Councillor J Mason asked if it would be possible to engage West Suffolk operatives in helping deliver practical projects. In terms of getting assistance from West Suffolk, the Clerk has been seeking a meeting with the local operations team leader to discuss their ability to fulfil their own responsibilities and concerns of residents. The Mayor will raise this when he meets the manager later in the week.

Councillor L Smith and D Smith both agreed that the Leiston Road area looked very poor. The Clerk has invited District Councillor Robert Everitt to meet with residents to discuss their concerns.

The Clerk updated the meeting on the Suffolk Punch project.

Councillor Brown endorsed using contractors to get work done, having seen the list he admitted he hadn't really appreciated the huge number of projects on the go and could understand why they were not all progressing. He asked if the Haverhill Area Forum could be got going, perhaps just once a year.

Councillor J Burns commented on the state of Strasbourg Square and all areas where there are problems.

The meeting noted many issues were the responsibility of West Suffolk District, Highways and Havebury. Councillor P Hanlon observed the state of the town encourages anti-social behaviour. Councillor J Mason suggested that Peter Stevens be asked to attend the same meeting as Robert Everitt. Councillor L Smith asked that Havebury Housing be invited. Councillors recalled estate walks that used to regularly happen and were effective.

Clerk

It was proposed by Mayor B Davidson, seconded by Councillor J Burns that the council defer further discussion until after councillors identify their priority items, based on what is achievable, importance and personal preference.

#### **RESOLVED**

The clerk will prepare the list for distribution and Councillor J Burns will collate the results.

Clerk

Councillor A Brown asked about creating a role of project officer, to allow the Clerk to delegate work to someone. The Clerk advised that such a role had been proposed by him and was funded in the adopted budget. He had drawn up a job description but was awaiting the Personnel Committee to sign it off.

## C22 ONE Haverhill Partnership

/098

/099

The Clerk referred the meeting to the previously circulated minutes of the Board meeting held 9<sup>th</sup> June 2022. Cllr J Mason asked that the appendices be circulated.

Clerk

## C22 Adoption of Committee Reports

## a) Planning Working Party

It was proposed by Councillor P Hanlon, seconded by Councillor L Stinchcombe that the minutes of the meeting held 28<sup>th</sup> June 2022 and the recommendations contained therein be adopted.

#### **RESOLVED**

## b) Leisure and Community Working Party

It was proposed by Councillor J Burns, seconded by Councillor L Smith that the minutes of the meeting held 5<sup>th</sup> July and the recommendations contained therein be adopted. Adopting the minutes includes adopting the recommendations, including any grant awards.

### **RESOLVED**

## c) Report on Committee meetings in person

The Meeting considered the report prepared by the Clerk as to whether meetings should be in-person or remain remotely-meeting working parties. Considerations include concerns over Covid, caring responsibilities and balancing work/life balance. Online meetings were said to better facilitate overcoming hearing impairment. It was noted more people attend or watch meetings online than came in person before Covid.

Some people prefer to meet in person, including members of the public without access to the internet. The dynamics are very different when meeting face-to-face, including discussions after the meeting. It was observed that Suffolk County Council and West Suffolk District Council have both returned to face-to-face meetings.

Councillor J Mason asked that Leisure & Community be held as face-toface rather than remotely. Councillor J Burns commented that Planning works well online, as does Finance.

It was proposed by Councillor J Mason, seconded by Councillor A Brown that Full Council & Leisure & Community be held face-to-face and other meetings remain online.

Councillor P Hanlon, seconded by Councillor D Smith, proposed an amendment, that the decision be implemented *after* the next Leisure & Community meeting, as Covid figures are currently high.

#### LOST 4 votes to 5

The council voted on the original proposal to hold Leisure and Community Committee meetings face-to-face.

#### **RESOLVED**

The September meeting will be held face-to-face. The Clerk will endeavour to find the best space for the meeting.

Clerk

## C22 Appoint of Chairs and Vice Chairs

It was proposed by Councillor J Burns, seconded by Councillor P Hanlon that Councillor P Hanlon be elected Chair, and Councillor A Brown be elected Vice-Chair of Planning and that Councillor J Burns be elected Chair and Councillor D Smith be elected Vice-Chair of Leisure & Community.

#### RESOLVED

## C22 Financial Matters

/101

/100

 a) <u>Authorisation of payments:</u> It was proposed by Councillor J Burns, seconded by Councillor L Smith, that the listed payments totalling £42.269.40 be authorised.

#### **RESOLVED**

b) It was proposed by Councillor J Burns, seconded by Councillor L Smith, that the RFO report to 31<sup>st</sup> May 2022 be accepted.

### **RESOLVED**

- C22 Actions taken under delegated powers
- /102 None.
- C22 To receive urgent correspondence
- /103 None.
- C22 <u>Dates of next Meeting:</u>
- /104 The date of the next meeting is scheduled for 27<sup>th</sup> September 2022, venue to be advised.
- C22 Closure
- /105 The Chairman declared the meeting closed at 20:59.

Signed	Date
<b>a.</b> .	

Chairman

Appendix 1 – Police Appendix 2 – County Councillors' reports

Appendix 3 – District Councillors' reports

Appendix 4 – Mayor's Report

#### **APPENDIX 1 - Police**

No report

## **APPENDIX 2 – County Councillors' reports**

#### **Councillor J Mason**

A guiet spell at County. Please see attached Parish Newsletter – little there for Haverhill.

I am following up on concerns that the new recycling centre off Homefields Road is being delayed. Awaiting a formal response, but very disappointed he wasn't notified about the delay for the waste facility.

This week is anti-social Behaviour awareness week. I have asked for clarity as to why West Suffolk has not be included – awaiting a response.

https://www.suffolk.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/council-news/show/suffolks-safer-stronger-communities-board-supports-anti-social-behaviour-awareness-week

Pleased to hear new LED light installation is now complete on Dovehouse Road. I have a number of issues relating to highways across the Cangle District that are ongoing.

Suffolk County Council Locality Money. Pleased to see the new fence now installed at the Haverhill & District Rugby Club on Castle Fields.



https://www.suffolknews.co.uk/haverhill/news/cash-boost-for-rugby-club-s-fencing-project-9264104/?fbclid=lwAR2TxSNax4x6zvo0ilc3bOlVnckpQsyxqMr6cz6QrXikefAXXcitXRgmtBo

## Some key headlines from County

## Unpaid family carers urged to have their say on a new All Age Carer Strategy for Suffolk.

Suffolk's Health and Wellbeing Board has received a report outlining progress made towards the creation of a new All Age Carers Strategy for Suffolk, which is being co-produced with carers, to help ensure they get the support they need.

There are an estimated 98,000 carers across Suffolk who provide unpaid care for their loved ones. In the UK, according to research from Carers UK conducted in 2020, this figure rises to 13.6 million. Their contribution is believed to have saved the country somewhere in the region of £193billion during the Covid-19 pandemic alone – during a time when many have faced unprecedented pressure, taking on new caring responsibilities for some of the most vulnerable in our society. These carers give up their time, money, education, careers and relationships to support those they care for, often impacting their own health too. The All Age Carers' strategy will also help support young carers in their current roles and through transition to adulthood, so they can continue their education, employment and goals in life.

A consultation on the draft strategy has been launched and it is hoped carers of all ages will have their say on the strategy and its five priorities which focus around; early identification of unpaid or family carers, improved information and advice for carers of all ages, ensuring younger carers have the same priority as adult carers, creating systems which work to support carers and help to improve the health and wellbeing of carers.

Speaking about the consultation Cllr. Beccy Hopfensperger, Cabinet member for Adult Social Care said, "The work of unpaid and family carers must be better understood and supported, and the new All Age Carers Strategy will certainly help to do that. I hope all carers across Suffolk take this opportunity to have their say and add their views to help build upon the co-production with carers which has already been fundamental in the strategy's development."

Details of the consultation, including a downloadable version of the draft strategy and both surveys (for adult or young carers) is available on the county council's website. www.suffolk.gov.uk/CarerStrategy

# Apology made after investigation finds Suffolk County Council failed to provide occupational therapy for a SEND child

Suffolk County Council has made a formal apology and paid compensation following an Ombudsman investigation.

Suffolk County Council has made a formal apology and paid compensation of £6,350 to a family of a child with special educational needs after an Ombudsman investigation found the council did not provide occupational therapy.

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman carried out a review after a complaint was made by the parent of a child with SEND from Lowestoft. The complaint, dating back to 2020, related to the council's failure to ensure that the child received occupational therapy support set out in the child's Education, Health and Care plan. Without this support, the report said, the child's mental health deteriorated and the child became unable to stay in mainstream schooling.

As a result of this investigation, the council has paid compensation and issued a formal apology. The Ombudsman also made four recommendations relating to the way Suffolk County Council delivers SEND services, which are being urgently implemented.

SEND services in Suffolk are currently undergoing a wide-scale reform to improve provision. This all-encompassing programme of reform was implemented from September 2021 and progress includes significant new recruitment, increased SEND budget, the provision of 879 extra special school places and strengthened communication practises, and improvement is being seen. At a national level, a recent Government Green paper concluded that the current national SEND system is not performing well, and is consulting on proposals for reform.

In the report, the Ombudsman recognised the extent of work ongoing by Suffolk County Council to improve the way SEND provision is delivered, and welcomed the commitment to widespread review and reform.

# Allan Cadzow, Corporate Director for Children and Young People, Suffolk County Council, said:

"We regret that we were not able to secure the provision for this child and are sorry for the distress this has caused.

"Lessons have been learnt from this report and we have begun to implement the recommendations made by the Ombudsman.

"We recognise the challenges we face within Suffolk's SEND provision and that is why we have embarked on a substantial and all-encompassing programme of reform. This is not an easy feat,

especially against the backdrop of a troubled national system, however, we are confident in our plans and are steadfast in our determination to improve the way we do things." The Ombudsman has given the council four months to complete the recommendations made. The case, and the progress made, will be reviewed by Suffolk County Council's Audit Committee on September 15, 2022.

It is the council's duty to ensure the delivery of the provision set out in the Education, Health and Care plan even when this is provided by partners.

Councillor P Hanlon referred to the amount of compensation that has been paid following the investigation by the ombudsman and there are further cases being considered. Nationally the SEND system is not performing well. Suffolk seems particularly bad. It is great they have apologised, things are getting better but more needs to be done.

## Red weather warning issued for Suffolk

Suffolk residents are urged to prepare for extreme temperatures next week following the first ever heat related red weather warning being issued for the county.

The weather warning is in place for Suffolk for Monday July 18 and Tuesday July 19, with the Met Office warning of a widespread impact on people and infrastructure as temperatures reach almost 40 degrees in the county.

In recognition of the adverse impact that the heat could have on the health of people, including those who are usually fit and well, Suffolk Resilience Forum is urging everyone to say safe in the high temperatures by:

Drinking plenty of fluids and always carrying water when out and about

Staying out of the sun, where possible, for the whole of Monday and Tuesday, but especially between 11am and 3pm

Applying sunscreen and wearing a hat if going out in the heat

Avoiding physical activity during the hottest parts of the day

Checking in on the vulnerable, including the elderly and those who live alone

Travel disruption may also be likely, with people expected to flock to Suffolk's coast during the good weather and the potential for speed restrictions on the county's rail networks. Any unnecessary travel should be avoided on Monday and Tuesday and anyone who must make a journey should check for delays before leaving home.

Suffolk Highways is braced for the anticipated high temperatures and has already begun preemptive dusting at sites that have recently been surface dressed to reduce the risk of the material breaking away from the surface below as it's driven over in particularly hot conditions. Drivers are asked to take extra care when using the roads and should report any problems on 0345 606 6171.

There has already been an increase in fires in the open during the past few days, and Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service is encouraging people to avoid barbecues and campfires on dry grass or near hedges, put out cigarettes properly before disposing of them, and call 999 immediately at the first sign of a fire. Read more guidance on fire prevention during hot weather.

Caution should also be taken by those looking to cool off with a swim, with around 85% of drownings take place in open water because of shock from cold water temperatures, strong currents and uneven banks and riverbeds.

## Stephen Baker, Chair of Suffolk Resilience Forum, commented:

"The first ever red weather warning for extreme heat in Suffolk demonstrates how serious these high temperatures could be and, as such, people should take the necessary precautions over

the coming days. Although the Suffolk Resilience Forum will continue to do all it can to help protect our county, we need everyone to follow the safety guidance in place to help avoid our emergency services being put under more pressure from heat related injuries, fires in the open, or water rescues."

"We know that there will be increased demand on our health colleagues during the heatwave so please contact 111 online in the first instance if feeling unwell and remember that 999 should be used for life threating emergencies only."

Suffolk residents can keep updated on the weather warning and subsequent disruptions by:

Visiting our extreme heat warning information page

Following @SuffolkCC on Twitter or Suffolk County Council on Facebook

Monitoring the weather forecast on the Met Office website

Visiting the <u>Suffolk school closures website</u> for up-to-date information on school closures – the decision to close a school during extreme weather is taken by the headteacher, with schools also making their own provisions for keeping children safe

Following @SuffolkLibrary on Twitter and Suffolk Libraries UK on Facebook for updates on any potential closures to libraries

## **APPENDIX 3 – District Councillors' reports**

Councillor D Smith and A Brown thanked Councillor J Burns for his report.

#### **Councillor A Brown**

Referred the meeting to the presence of small business units on many farms, and the need for more small business units <2.000ft<sup>2</sup> in town.

### Councillor P Hanlon

Reported on the proceedings of the Licensing committee and the issues with taxi services and the committee supported the taxi drivers in increasing fees, to prevent an exodus.

#### Councillor J Burns

- NW Haverhill: Work continues with further phase applications going through the planning process. The infrastructure phase was approved at last WSC DevControl with condition that relief road connection to the internal spine road be made first to ensure Ann Suckling Road is not overwhelmed with construction and other traffic. Drop kerbs on the existing and new development is of concern and SCC/Planning have been made well aware of the requirements.
- **Great Wilsey Park:** The new roundabout on Chalkstone Way is now complete. The new northern footpath from New Croft to the roundabout is currently under construction and I have asked SCC to ensure adequate and sufficient drop kerbs are installed.
- Railway walk resurface:\_Still awaiting contract agreement with the sole tender company so that work can start.
- Castle Hill Site: Work continues apace with sales ongoing.
- **Police Matters:** May crime stats were distributed on 13<sup>th</sup> July. I attended (online) the Accountability & Performance Panel meeting on 8<sup>th</sup> July and last Friday the Police & Crime Panel the papers are available online.

The Chief Constable (Steve Jupp) has elected to retire from Suffolk Constabulary later this year to join a national policing role. Tim Passmore is due to attend the Chalkstone Fun Day on 10<sup>th</sup> August with local policing officers and staff.

Three people were arrested in Lincolnshire in connection with a series of house burglaries across East Anglia and at least 4 in Haverhill where primarily jewellery was stolen. A well-known (to the police) local man was arrested and charged last week for theft from motor vehicles.

• **SCC Highways:** Still no news on restoring the missing signs in the High Street. Yet again I have chased for updates.

I had cause to intervene over the Anglian Water sewerage repairs in Camps Road to ensure that there was an escape route when the High Street was closed via Mill Road although it was agreed to change the one way all they did was make it temporary two way which caused some road rage incidents. I then had to chase up to get them revert the changes when work was complete.

Resurfacing work in Chalkstone Way is progressing but has been delayed for a couple of days due to the hot weather.

- **Greater Cambridge Partnership:** Attended an online meeting last week organised by WSC which seemed to achieve nothing except they still love buses and not considering any other form of public transport. They want to redesignate roads, close off many of the side streets to stop rat runs, and eventually bring in road charging.
- **Parking:** Still have had no answers from WSC why they have not been reporting statistics since Dec 2021. And the non-visibility of CPE officers except in the car parks is astounding.
- Markets: The West Suffolk review is due to be presented to Cabinet tomorrow (19<sup>th</sup>) after which I hope we can start working together to implement some of the recommendations.

With Paul Firman, I judged the young trader's competition last Saturday and all were extremely good so much so the top and bottom scores from us both were very close together. In the end, although there was one winner, we decided all were of such a quality that they should all go to the regional final in BSE in 2 weeks' time. They all had a good day in the town, and all said they will return during the makers markets which is very encouraging although the sun shone and a lot of people about. Those markets will, from now on, be in the High Street to be an integral part of the market provision rather than separated on the Market Square.

- **Sturmer Arches:** Still no news from WSC. The police have reported another incident of a person on top that they had to deal with.
- Strasbourg Square: Still awaiting plans by WSC for renovation. The graffiti in this area was cleaned by WSC property but someone has decided they wanted to deface a building again. The local residents are not at all happy about the ASB that is occurring in this area apparently perpetuated by young teenagers who seem not to want to work with the police, some of whom have had dispersal orders issued against them with at least one young person arrested and now out on bail.
- Market Square: Still nothing been done on this regarding the dips and dirty areas.
- Remembrance 2022: Planning for this continues and will now be held at the war memorial on Sunday 13<sup>th</sup> November at 3pm in order to allow the BSE Sea Cadets band to lead the parade.

#### Other work:

o Continue to assist with IT and CCTV systems for Kiosk, Zone and Arts Centre.

- o Monitor use of the Splash Pad water consumption on a weekly basis.
- Usual ton of emails and questions answered as well as many online and occasional physical meetings.
- Facilitating broadcast of TC council meetings at the Arts Centre.
- Filming of shows at request of artistes at the Arts Centre.
- WSC meetings continue.
- Delivered and collected barriers to New Croft for a large football event.
- Met online (with others) Gigaclear to discuss their plans for FTTP provision to the east of the town.
- Helped out and stewarded at Samuel Ward prom.
- Gave presentation to the Emergency Cadets regarding my background/work career, different councils and what they do/interact with each other, role of Haverhill TC and what it does, how I work with the police, Police & Crime Panel, how the cadets support the town, and how Covid affected my Mayoralty period with a short video of the Freedom parade from 2019.
- Was due to have cleaned the Splash Pad with the Community Warden today, with an industrial pressure washer, but we have deferred until at least Wednesday due to the hot weather. It is looking a bit grubby mostly caused by dirt transferred from outside via shoes being worn by the looks of things. The water will come from the splash pad wastewater tank. Later this week I will be working with the HTC tech team to clean a load of Heras fencing recently acquired ready for the festival on the Rec next month. The new water supply is now connected and should mean the very few complaints we have had about the water running out being a thing of the past.

## **APPENDIX 4 – Mayor's Report**

## **Mayor Bruce Davidson**

Only 18 engagements this month – but it is a shorter period – see attachment. Also managed to sneak in a 4 day Holiday!

Highlight for the month has to be the Armed Forces Day! For those Town Councillors who were involved - in addition to witnessing the Convoy, they were treated to the Pipes & Drums of Phoenix Pipe Band from Watton –not forgetting the delightful sounds of the Victory Rolls – a trio of ladies singing wartime classics!

One week later we then had the Haverhill Show. Well done to all those involved – fantastic day, £3554 raised for local good causes and great weather bringing out the crowds!

As before if you know or are involved in any Community groups - then give me a shout, or contact Vicky, who controls my diary – if you feel that it would be worthwhile for the Mayor to visit them.

Just in case you are not aware, the Haverhill Echo has at last agreed that the Mayor can write a monthly column – the first article appears this Thursday 14<sup>th</sup> July. If there is any topic that you feel should be aired – please feel free to get in touch with me.

Hope you are all enjoying the lovely weather?

## Many thanks

Date	Venue & Event	Attending
18/06/2022	40 <sup>th</sup> Anniversary Falklands War & Wreath laying	Mayor & Consort
18/06/2022	Kedington Meadow Lark	Mayor & Consort
20/06/2022	High Street - Raising the flag for Armed Forces week	Mayor & Consort
21/06/2022	Framlingham Mayors & Chairs gathering for Suffolk day	Mayor & Consort
25/06/2022	BBC Radio Suffolk Interview	Mayor & Consort
25/06/2022	Armed Forces Day	Mayor & consort
25/06/2022	St Mary's singalong at Withersfield Church 'Joseph's Technicolour Dreamcoat'	Mayor & Consort
26/06/2022	West Suffolk Council Civic Service	Mayor & Consort
29/06/2022	Invite to see Caroline Robertson, MD of Connecting Communities and the work they do in Haverhill.	Mayor & Consort
29/06/2022	Awarding Police Cadet Certificates	Mayor & Consort
30/06/2022	Visit to Castle Manor – election of Head Students	Mayor & Consort
02/07/2022	U 3 A Picnic - Kedington	Mayor & Consort
03/07/2022	Haverhill Show	Mayor & Consort
03/07/2022	75 <sup>th</sup> birthday party	Mayor & Consort
03/07/2022	Haverhill Silver band at St Mary's church	Mayor & Consort
08/07/2022	lpswich Mayor at Home	Deputy Mayor
09/07/2022	West Suffolk Council – Queens Commonwealth Games Baton Relay	Mayor & Consort
10/07/2022	Rural Relics	Mayor & Consort